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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

   
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Montgomery and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: David N. Carmany, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jim Arndt, Public Works Director 
  Juan Price, Maintenance Superintendent 
   
DATE: June 21 2011 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration to Authorize the City Manager to Award a Contract to C.T. Georgiou 

Painting Co. for the Facilities Maintenance Painting 2011 Project for an Amount 
Not-to-Exceed $45,500.00 

 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the City Council pass a motion to: 
 

1. Authorize the City Manager to Award a contract in the amount of $ 45,500.00 to C.T. 
Georgiou Painting Co. for the Facilities Maintenance Painting 2011 Project; 

 
2. Authorize the City Manager to approve additional work in an amount not-to-exceed 

$4,550.00 (10%), if required. 
  

FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
There is adequate funding in the Contract Services portion of the Building Maintenance operating 
budget (615-18-041-5101) approved by City Council for fiscal year 2010-2011 to cover contract 
costs. 
 

Expenditures 
Construction Contract (C.T. Georgiou Painting Co.) $45,500.00 45,500.00
Contingency (10%) $4,550.00 4,550.00
TOTAL ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES $00.00 $50,55000

Estimated Balance After Completion  $70,000.00
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In developing a sustainable and programmed approach to the City’s facilities maintenance 
programs, there is an established a goal to paint the exterior of structures every 5 years and the 
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interiors every 3 years. The facilities included in the current contract include the City Hall plaza 
area including railings, elevator structure, Live Oak Recreation Hall, Live Oak tennis monitor 
office, and the Public Works Facility.  
 
The project bidding was split into “base” work and the ability to add additional work as budget 
allowed in the form of additive alternates. The basis of award was predicated upon the “base” 
portion of the project. The chosen contractor submitted the lowest bid on both the base project, as 
well as additive alternates, and the combinations of costs are reflected in the recommended award.   
 
Environmental Review
In accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) of 1970, this project is 
Categorically Exempt (Section 15301, Class 1(c)).  A Notice of Exemption has been filed with the 
County Clerk’s office. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Bid Proposals 
This project was advertised for bids in the Beach Reporter, the City’s publisher of record and several 
standard construction industry publications, including the Dodge Green Sheet, Reed Construction 
Data, and Associated General Contractors of America.  Additionally, potential bidders were invited 
and strongly encouraged to attend a guided job walk that was conducted at all identified locations, 
allowing clarification of contract expectations and familiarization with site specifics. Subsequently, 
13 sets of plans and specifications were provided to contractors, subcontractors and material 
suppliers.  A total of six bids were received and opened on May 12, 2011, as follows: 
 

 Bidders  
 

No. Contractor Base Bid Amount Additive Alternate Total 
1  C T Georgiou Painting Co $21,400  $24,100  $45,500  
2  Color New Company $28,300  $33,330  $61,630  
3  Omega Construction Company Inc $24,400  $50,350  $74,750  
4  AJ Fistes Corporation $49,896  $28,312  $78,208  
5  Pacific Painting Company Inc $34,000  $49,000  $83,000  
6  Piana Construction & Painting Inc $47,400  $41,900  $89,300  
7  Everlast Painting Co $41,000  $58,000  $99,000  
8  Escazu Painting $54,269  $52,947  $107,216  
9  Leo’s A-C Inc $50,000  $60,500  $110,500  
10  Fix Painting Company $51,700  $91,000  $142,700  
11  Union Construction $53,000  $90,000  $143,000  
12  KM Industrial, Inc $71,400  $80,800  $152,200  
13  Tony’s Painting $124,750  $86,500  $211,250  
  Engineers Estimate   $150,000  

 
C.T. Georgiou Painting Co.’s bid was reviewed by the Public Works Department and found to be 
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responsive. Though lower than staff’s estimate, C.T. Georgiou Painting Co. has indicated that they 
wish to proceed with the project. Detailed discussion with the company owner indicated that he is 
familiar with public works contracts and has over 20 years experience working with them, 
understands that this is a prevailing wage contract, and is secure in his knowledge of the 
specifications contained within the submitted contract documents. Staff reviewed C.T. Georgiou 
Painting Co.’s, contractor’s license, license bond, and Workmen’s Compensation Insurance history 
and found them to be in order. C.T. Georgiou Painting Co. has completed projects as a prime 
contractor for the City of  Burbank Water and Power as well as a subcontractor for work 
completed at Los Angeles Community College District; Citrus Continuation High School, 
Fontana; Riverside Community College; La Sierra/La Vista High School, Riverside; and 
Rosedale Middle School, Bakersfield among others.  Additionally, references indicate C.T. 
Georgiou Painting Co. has the knowledge and capability to complete the work in a timely and 
workmanlike fashion.  
 
Authorization of Additional Work by the City Manager 
It is recommended that the City Manager be authorized to approve contingency funds in an amount 
not-to-exceed $4,550.00 (10% of contract cost) to complete unforeseen work.  A report of any 
additional work will be provided to the City Council at the end of the project 
 
Schedule 
It is estimated that construction will begin in late June, 2011 and be complete in 30 working days.   
 
Attachments: A. Construction Contract- C.T. Georgiou Painting, Inc. 
   
cc: Henry Mitzner, Controller 
 Jeanne D. O’Brien, Accountant         
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